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ANNEXURE - |

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31-03-2019
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

Q)] Registration & Other Details :

1 | CIN U45201GJ1988SGC011453

2 Registration Date 01-11-1988

3 Name of the Company Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited

4 Category / Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares /
State Government Company

5 Address of the Registered office and contact details Behind Lokayukta Bhavan,
Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B,
Gandhinagar-382010.

6 Whether listed company No

7 Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & N.A.

Transfer Agent, if any.

(I Principal Business Activities of the Company :
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. Product / Service of the company
1 Construction of Buildings 41001 100%

(1 Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies

Holding /
Sr. Name and Address of the
CIN/GLN Subsidiary /
No. Company .
Associate

N.A.
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(V)

Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(A) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end %
Shareholders of the year [As on 1 April 2018] of the year [As on 31 March 2019] Change
% of % of dL:;igg
Demat Physical Total Total [Demat| Physical Total Total year
Shares Shares
A Promoters
(1) Indian
(@) Individual / HUF Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) State Govt(s) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 [100%/| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 [100% Nil
(d) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(f)  Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Shareholding
of Promoters (A) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100%]| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100% Nil
B Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
(@) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e) Venture Capital Funds | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
) Insurance Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(9) Flis Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(h)  Foreign Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds
(i)  Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(1) Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(2)  Non-Institutions
(a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Individuals
(i)  Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
(i) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 lakh
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(c)  Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overseas Corporate Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Clearing Members Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Bodies D R Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Public Shareholding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C Shares held by custodian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100%]| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100% Nil
(B) Shareholding of Promoter :
Sr. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of %
No. the year [As on 01-04-2018] the year [As on 31-03-2019] Change
in share
% of total |% of Shares % of total |% of Shares| holding
No. of Shares of Pledged/ No. of Shares of Pledged/ during
Shares the encumbered Shares the encumbered the
Company [tototal shares Company |tototal shares year
1 H. E. Governor of 49,99,993 100 — 49,99,993 100 — —
Gujarat
2 Shri Nalinbhai Nisarta 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
3 Shri D. R. Bhammar 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
4 Shri A. V. Vala 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
5 Smt. Nayanaben K. Patel 1 0.00 — 0 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
6 Shri Jayprakash S. Joshi 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
7 Shri Atulbhai Vakhariya 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
8 Shri Kanubhai D. Suthar 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
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9 Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel 0 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
Total 50,00,000 100% — 50,00,000 100% — —
(C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
(Please specify, if there is no change) :
Sr. Particulars Shgre_holding at the Cumulat_ive Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
% of total % of total
No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 Smt. Nayanaben K. Patel
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer to
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
year specifying the reasons for as on
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / 23-07-2018
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year 0 00.00
2 Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer to
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Pushpak H. Gandhi
year specifying the reasons for (As a Nominee of
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / Govt. of Gujarat)
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.) as on 05-09-2018
At the end of the year 0 00.00
3 Shri Pushpak H. Gandhi
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer from
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
year specifying the reasons for (As a Nominee of
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / Govt. of Gujarat)
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.) as on 12-12-2018
At the end of the year 1 00.00
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(D)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders :

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRS) :

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding

beginning of the year during the year
S(;' For Ez;chharzL;rdeer';op 10 % of total % of total
' No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc) :
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sr. Shareholding of each Direptors % of total % of total
No. and eacgelfseoynnl\g?nagerlal No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc) :
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(F)

Indebtendness

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits Total
(excluding deposits) Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
* Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii)  Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
(V) Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(A) Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager.
Sr. Particulars of Name of Total
No. Remuneration MD / WTD / Manager Amount
Shri Hasmukh Patel (Managing Director)
1 Gross Salary 20,93,104 20,93,104
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Nil Nil
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others, please specify 5,89,115 5,89,115
Total (A) 26,82,219 26,82,219
Ceiling as per the Act Nil Nil
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(B)

Remuneration to other directors

No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Mr. Jainik Mr. Dharmendra — —
Vakil Mirani
1 Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee meeting 13,500 15,000 Nil Nil 28,500
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify 18,300 39,476 Nil Nil 57,776
Total (1) 31,800 54,476 Nil Nil 86,276
2 Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committee meeting Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil
Total (B) = (1+2) 31,800 54,476 Nil | Nil 86,276
Total Managerial Remuneration Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD
No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
Nandan Sunilkumar
Jayantbhai Munshi| Govindji Shah
1 Gross Salary Nil 22,23,678 14,27,941 36,51,619
(a) Salary as per provisions Nil Nil Nil Nil
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s Nil Nil Nil Nil
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil 22,23,678 14,27,941 36,51,619
(VI) Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences : NIL
For and on behalf of Board
Date : 04-11-2019 D D Patel
Place : Gandhinagar Chairman
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FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Name of the Company . GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.
Registered Office . Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382 010.
CIN No. : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address

E-mail 1D
Folio No. / Client 1D
DP ID
I/We, being the member(s) of ............... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint.
(1) Name PSPPSR
Address PP
E-mail 1D L e
Signature PP or failing him
(2) Name PSPPSR
Address L e
E-mail 1D PP
Signature PSPPI TPPTRPPIN or failing him
(3) Name PR
Address PP
E-mail 1D L e
Signature PP

As myl/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual
General Meeting (ADJOURNED) of the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, 26th November, 2019 at 12.00

noon at registered office of the Corporation, situated at Behind Lokayukta Bha van, Off “CHH” Road, Sector

10/B, Gandhinagar-382 010. , Gujarat and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ............... day of ............... 2019
Signature of Shareholder ..........ccoooiiiiiiiii e,
Signature of Proxy holder(S) ......coovveiiiiiiiiieii e

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.
CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Route Map for the Venue of the
31st Annual General Meeting of
Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
to be held at the Registered Office of the Corporation
located at
Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B,
Gandhinagar-382010.

Prominent Landmark - Behind Lokayukta Bha van
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REVIEW OF 31% ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19
OF GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

For speedy construction of residential buildings for Police Department, the State
Government has established GPHC on 1.11.1988 so that the satisfaction level in the area
of availability of residential quarters in the Police department can be increased
substantially. The Corporation has so far taken up work of construction of total 39889,
new residential units of various categories till March, 2019 and out of that 36421 units
were completed and handed over to the State Government for the use of Police
Department.

Main Activity :

Under the review of the year, the Corporation has taken up construction of 2968
residential units and 1017 non-residential buildings at various places in the State. The
Corporation has handed over 2025 residential units and 775 non-residential buildings.
Over and above, Corporation is taking up construction work of Police Academy at Karai,
Coastal security under the Scheme of 13" Finance & Modernization of Police Force
Scheme and Tribal Area Sub Plan.

Financial Resources :

During the year under review, The Corporation has received Rs. 543.20 crores from the
State Government for various purpose.

Capital :

The Authorized and Paid-up Share Capital of the Corporation during the year under
review is Rs. 50 crores, which is paid by the State Government.

Accounts & Audit :

The Corporation is working on “No Profit No Loss” basis. During the year under review,
the Corporation has spent Rs. 172.49 crores for its various construction activities.

The Corporation has formed Audit Committee U/S 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Additional Chief Secretary
Home Department
Government of Gujarat
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GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.

31t Annual Report
2018-19

Board of Directors
(As on 04-11-2019)

Shri D. D. Patel ... Chairman
Shri Hasmukh Patel |, iPs ... Managing Director
Shri N. N. KOMAI |, IPS oo Director
Shri Brajesh Jha |, IPS . Director
Shri S. B. VaSa VA ... Director
Shri Jainik Vakil ..o, Independent Director
Shri Dharmendra Mirani ... Independent Director

Smt. Arpita Rajpurohit
Company Secretary

o Statutory Auditors e
R. S. Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Ahmedabad.

o Secretarial Auditors e
Gaudana & Gaudana
Practicing Company Secretary
Ahmedabad.

o Bankers
State Bank of India
H.D.F.C. Bank Ltd.
Corporation Bank

[.D.B.I. Bank

Axis Bank Ltd.

o Regd. Office
Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH" Road,
Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010.
Phone : 23256801 to 806, Fax : 23256220

CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453  Website : www.gsphc.gujarat.gov.in Mail ID : gsphcltd@gmail.com

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. 31st Annual Report 2018-19



BLANK
PAGE




GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.

Regd. Office
Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road,
Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010.

CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453 Mail ID : gsphcltd@gmail.com
NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty First (Adjourned) Annual General Meeting of the members of the Gujarat
State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. will be held on Tuesday, 26th November, 2019 at 12.00 noon at the registered
office of the Corporation situated at Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010
to transact the following business.

Ordinary Business

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year 2018-19 viz. Balance Sheet
as on 31st March, 2019, Statement of Income and Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
on that date, together with Director's Report, Auditor's Report and the Report of Comptroller and Auditor
General of India thereon.

By Order of the Board
For, Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

Sunil Shah
Chief Financial Officer & I/C. Company Secretary

Date : 05-11-2019
Place : Gandhinagar

NOTES

(1) A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself
and a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(2) Proxy Form attached herewith, duly signed and stamped must be deposited at the registered office of the
Corporation atleast 48 hours before the meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,
The Members of
Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

Your Directors are pleased to present the 31st Annual Report on the performance of your Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2019 alongwith Audited Financial Statements, Independent Auditor’s Report,
Secretarial Audit Report and Report of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

(1) Financial Highlights :
During the year under review, performance of your company is as under :

(Rs. in Lakhs)
particulars Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018
Government Grant and Advances received for the works during the year 54,319.80 40,728.14
Income :
Revenue Income 66.97 167.77
Other Income 241.35 27.20
Prior Period Income — 149.31
Total Income 308.32 344.28
Expenditure :
Opening works in progress 24,653.41 41,166.60
Expenditure on Building works 17,249.23 19,572.40
Employees Expenditure 1,419.76 1,832.41
Other Expenditure 381.19 326.14
Depreciation 21.88 30.56
Total Expenditure 43,725.47 62,928.11
Excess of Expenditure over Income Transferred & Adjusted : ** 43,417.15 **62,583.83
(i) Cost of works completed 34,880.19 ** 43,417.15 **62,583.83
works & adjusted against grant / advances P.Y. (37,930.42)
(i) Closing work in progress 8,536.96
P.Y. (24,653.41)

*x As per the Accounting Policy adopted by the Corporation, there does not result any surplus / deficit
at the year end from the activities of the Corporation.

(2) State of Company’s Affairs and Future Outlook :

(a) Projects Completed :
Board is pleased to inform the members that during the year under review, the Corporation had
completed construction of 2025 (Previous Year - 3487) Police / Jail Staff Quarters of different categories
and 775 (Previous Year - 168) Non-residential buildings at various locations in the State and the same
are handed over to the State Government for occupation.

The Corporation every year takes up construction of police staff quarters of different categories based
on priorities accorded by Director General of Police, Gujarat State. The places where the quarters were
completed, as referred to above, include Devjipura (Ahmedabad), SRPF Group-lll (Madana), Navapara
(Bhavnagar), Sector-27 (Gandhinagar), Magodi (Gandhinagar), SRP Group-V (Godhra & Godhra PHQ), Vyara
(Tapi) etc. Upto March, 2019, the Corporation completed construction of 36421 (Previous Year - 34396)
quarters of different categories and handed over it to the State Government for occupation. The Corporation
took upto March, 2019, construction of total 39889 (Previous Year - 36921) new quarters.

<, 4
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Progress of Ongoing W orks :

During the year under review, the Corporation took up construction of total 2968 (Previous Year - 226)
residential quarters at various locations in the State at a cost of Rs. 493.28 Crores (Previous Year - 17 Crores).
The places include Ahmedabad City, Bajkot (Arrvalli), Bharuch, Botad, Khutaliya PHQ (Chota Udepur),
Sector-27 PHQ (Gandhinagar), SRP Group-7 (Nadiad), Kheda Camp, Rajkot City, Vadodara City etc.

Over and above 1017 (Previous Year - 124) non-residential buildings were taken up for construction
with an estimated cost of Rs. 442.72 Crores (Previous Year - 134 Crores). Major projects include construction
of Ahmedabad City, Anand, Modasa, Ankleshwar, Vartej (Bhavnagar), Botad, Khutaliya (Chota Udepur), Doki
(Dahod), Dahod, Magodi (Gandhinagar), Sector-27 (Gandhinagar), Jamnagar, Junagadh, Adipur (Kutch), SRP
Group-VIl (Nadiad), Mehsana, Navsari, Narmada, Patan, Rajkot City, Surat, Surendranagar, Vyara (Tapi),
Vadodara City etc.

Future Planning :

For the financial year 2019-20, the State Government has made budgetary provision of about Rs. 614.25
Crores for construction of residential, non-residential buildings (Police & Jail), Police Training, Home Guards,
FSL offices, maintenance & repair works etc.

The Corporation intends to raise the satisfaction level in the area of availability of housing for the
police personnel to 80%, subject to availability of budgetary support from the Government. Repairs and
renovation of existing houses is also of the utmost importance and Corporation has also focused in this
area from the funds available for this purpose. Special priority will be accorded for the districts in which
the level of satisfaction in availability of housing is below 50%. In and around urban and semi-urban areas
where the land is scarce as well as costly, the Corporation will take up projects of residential accommodation
by constructing high rise building. Corporation is constantly making all endeavors to improve the design
and using more qualitative materials and specifications to cater to the needs of beneficiaries. In Police lines
having 100 or more residential units, are provided with appropriate landscaping, play area for children and
“Anganwadi” with library facilities.

Financial Resources :
During the financial year 2018-19, the State Government (Including deposit works) provided total Rs. 543.20
Crores (Previous Year - Rs. 407.28 Crores) through the budgetary allocations for undertaking construction
of residential, non-residential buildings & maintenance & repairs for Police & Jail department.

The Corporation also takes up projects relating to construction of non-residential buildings / Infrastructure
works for other Government departments as “Deposit W ork”. In the year 2018-19 Rs. 11.86 Crores were
expended for Deposit Works.

Accounts :
Accounts for the F.Y. 2018-19 have been prepared, based on provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per the Accounting Policy followed by the Corporation, during the financial year 2018-19, the accounts
does not show any excess of expenditure over income and vice versa.

As can be seen from the financial statements that for the financial year 2018-19, Rs. 172.49 Crores
(Previous Year - 195.72 Crores) were expended on various construction activities. During the year under
review, projects worth Rs. 348.80 Crores (Previous Year - 379.30 Crores) were completed and adjusted
against grant / budgetary provision and are shown under Note No. 20 in the statement of Income & Expenditure
Account. This includes Rs. 11.86 Crores (Previous Year - 9.73 Crores) for Deposit Work. At the year
end, the value of work in progress was Rs. 85.37 Crores (Previous Year - 246.53 Crores) and is duly
shown under Note No. 9 in the Balance Sheet. Income received to the tune of Rs. 3.08 Crores (Previous
Year - 3.63 Crores) is deducted / credited from the cost of the projects.
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(12)

Change in Nature of Business :

Your Company is engaged in providing residential / non-residential buildings for Police, Jail and other offices
functioning under the Home Department, Government of Gujarat. In addition thereto, it also executes, as
“DEPOSIT WORK” construction and allied work for other Government offices / department. There was no
change of interest in other areas of operation by your Company during the year under review.

Dividend :

Since your Company is engaged in the activities of providing residential / non-residential buildings required
for Police, Jail and other offices functioning under the Home Department, Government of Gujarat and as per
the Accounting Policy consistently followed, there does not result any profit / loss at the year end. Therefore,
no dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors for the financial year 2018-19. (Previous Year - NIL).

Amounts Transferred to Reserves :
As per the Accounting Policy followed by your Company, there does not result any profit / loss at the year
end and therefore, no amount is transferred to the “Reserves”.

Changes in Share Capital :
The authorized and paid up share capital of the Corporation, during the year under review, remained at
Rs. 50 Crores. During the year 2018-19. No allotment of Equity Share by way of private placement /
preferential allotment / right issue / employee stock option scheme, were made.

Further, during the year 2018-19, no Equity Shares with differential rights or by way of Employee
Stock option or Issue of Sweat Equity Shares was made.

Annual Return :
The extract of Annual Return, in format MGT-9, for the financial year 2018-19 is enclosed with this Report
[Anne xure-1] .

Board Meetings :
During the year 2018-19, total 7 Board meetings were held. They were held on 09-07-2018, 26-07-2018,
18-08-2018, 04-10-2018, 11-12-2018, 16-01-2019 & 13-02-2019.

Particulars of Loans / Guarantees / Investments / Securities Under Section 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 :

During the year under review, no loans were given, investments were made, guarantees were given and
securities were provided and therefore, no such particulars are to be disclosed for the same.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties
During the year under review, there were no contracts or arrangements with related parties, referred to in
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Audit :

M/s. R. S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the financial year 2018-19 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. The Statutory Auditors have
audited the Accounts of the Company for the F.Y. 2018-19 and have given their report without any qualification.
The copy of the Audit Report is annexed herewith. The Report is self-explanatory and does not require
any further comments by the Board.

Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India :

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India have decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial
statements of your Company for the year ended on March 31, 2019 and as such, have no comments to
make U/s. 143(6)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. A copy of the same is annexed separately in this Report.
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Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

Secretarial Audit :

M/s. Gaudana & Gaudana, Company Secretaries, was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company
for the F.Y. 2018-19 by the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor
(MR-3), is annexed herewith (Anne xure-2).

Secretarial Standards :
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 relating to ‘Meeting of the
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ respectively have been duly followed by the Company.

Material Changes During the Year Under Revie w :
No material changes have occurred during the year and between the end of financial year under review
and the date of this Report of the Board of Directors which affects the financial position of the company.

Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, T
& Outgo :
Conservation of Energy & T echnical Absorption :
As your company is not involved in any manufacturing activity / does not own any manufacturing facility,
there are no particulars relating to Conservation of Energy & Technical Absorption.

However, in pursuit of its continuing commitments, your Company accorded highest priority to safety
and energy conservation programme at all levels. The Company continues to give due priority to conservation
of energy on continuous basis.

echnical Absorption & Foreign Exchange Earnings

Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo :
Details regarding Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo during the financial year 2018-19 were NIL.

Details of Subsidiary, Joint V entures or Associates :
The Company has no subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies during the year under review.

Risk Management Policy :

Your company is a wholly owned Government Company and under the direct administrative control of the
Home Department, Government of Gujarat, it mainly follows Government rules, regulations and directives,
wherever applicable and also well defined hierarchy and delegation of powers for its day to day operations.
Standard Operating Procedures [SOP] and due diligence parameters are followed. All the assets & projects
under progress are properly and adequately insured. The audit committee monitors the external / internal
factors of risks and suggests steps to mitigate the same and report to the Board.

Director & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) :
Being a wholly owned Government Company, power to appoint Directors on the Board including their tenure,
rests with the Government of Gujarat.

The changes in Board and KMP during the year under review is as under :

No. Name of Director Designation Type of Change Date of Change
1 Shri Ashish Bhatia, IPS Managing Director Cessation 19-07-2018
2 Shri Hasmukh Patel, IPS Managing Director Appointment 19-07-2018
3 Shri Mohan Jha, IPS Director Cessation 25-07-2018
4 Shri Manoj Aggarwal IPS Director Cessation 21-07-2018
5 Shri Brajesh Kumar Jha, IPS Director Appointment 09-08-2018
6 Shri T. S. Bisht, IPS Director Appointment 09-08-2018

Shri Nandan Munshi, Company Secretary (KMP) retired

<D,

on 31-12-2018 on super annuation.
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(25)
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(27)

At this stage, | would like to place on record the gratitude on behalf of the Board for guidance and services
provided by all outgoing Directors. | welcome new Directors joining the Board and | am confident that the
Corporation will be benefitted with their wide and varied experience in its all round development & progress.

Declaration of Independence by Independent Directors :

The Independent Directors have submitted their declarations with respect to their Independence along with
the compliance with the code of conduct for Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors :

As per the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India notification dated 5th June, 2015, Government
Companies are exempted from the provision clause (p) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Hence the Company being Government Company, provision of Board Evaluation is not applicable
to the Company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting

the going concern status and company’s Operations in Future :

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future during the F.Y. 2018-19.

Details of Adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements :

Yours Company, being a Government Company, has adopted various Standard Operating Procedure (SOP),
approval of the finance and other matters by proper delegation of powers and hierarchy to ensure proper
internal controls.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e. M/s. R. S. Patel & Co., Chartered Accountants, in their
Report on “Internal Financial Control” (IFC) have also opined that there is adequate internal control system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business with regard to purchase of fixed assets and services.

The Statutory Auditors have further certified that they have neither come across nor were informed
of any continuing failure to correct major weakness in the internal control system.

Deposits :

Your Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and
as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on such deposits which were outstanding as on
the date of Balance Sheet.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
As your Company does not fall within any of the criterias laid down under Secion 135(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, it is not required to form Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

Audit Committee :
As decided by the Board, the Audit Committee shall meet minimum twice in a financial year.
As on 31-03-2019, the composition of Audit Committee was as under :
(1) shri Milind Torawane, IAS.
(2)  Shri Jainik Vakil.
(3) Shri Dharmendra Mirani.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, as finalized by the Board of Directors remained
unchanged. During the year under review, Audit Committee meetings were held on 09-07-2018, 18-08-2018 and
04-10-2018. All recommendations of Audit committee have been accepted by the Board.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. @ m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



(28)

(29)

(30)

(31)

(32)

(33)

Nomination & Remuneration Committee :

As per the requirement of Provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has formed
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. However, the Provisions of Section 178 (2, 3 & 4) are not
applicable to Government Companies (vide exemption granted by MCA Notification dated 05-06-2015),
except with regard to appointment of senior Management and other employees.

As on 31-03-2019, the composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee was as under :

(1) Shri T. S. Bisht, IPS.
(2)  shri Jainik Vakil (Independent Director).
(3) Shri Dharmendra Mirani (Independent Director).

As decided by the Board of Directors, this Committee shall meet minimum once in a financial year.
During the year under review, the committee duly met on 18-02-2019. The scope of work of the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee is related with appointment of senior Management level employees and reviewing
their pay / salary structure.

Representation of W omen Employees :

Disclosure under the se xual harassment of women at work place (prevention, prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company provides equal growth opportunities for its women employees. There is no discrimination
of the employees on the basis of gender.

Your Company has an “Anti-se xual Harassment Policy” in line with the requirement of The Sexual
Harrassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints
Committee [ICC] has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees etc.) are covered under this Policy. During the year under review,
no case has been reported under the same.

Right to Information Act
The RTI Act 2005 is a powerful tool to usher any public probity and empower citizens.

Your Company has implemented the RTI Act 2005 to provide information to the citizens of India and
also to maintain accountability and transparency in the working of the Company. The Company has designated
a Public Information Officer (P1O), an Appellate Authority at its registered office, for effective implementation
of the RTI Act.

Fraud Reporting
No cases of fraud have been reported to the Audit committee and Board by the Auditors of the Company.

Cost Auditors
The Central Government has not prescribed cost audit U/s. 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in case of
your Company. Accordingly, no cost auditor is required to be appointed.

Human Resources Development Management [HRD]
HRD Initiatives
Learning and development
Your company pays due importance to the employee development and their competency. Your company
reviews the need for learning as an ongoing process and provides opportunity to keep all the employees
well aware with latest trends in their respective functional areas.

With regular review meetings and interactions with the employee’s representatives, the management
ensures cordial and harmonious “employer - employee” relationship.
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(34) Directors Responsibility Statement
In accordance with the Provisions of Section 134(5) of the companies act 2013, your Directors confirm that :

(35)

Date
Place

@)
(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the F.Y. ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed alongwith proper explanation relating to material departures.

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2019 and of the profit / loss of the Company for that period.
The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the Provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgement :

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to place on record its gratitude for the co-operation, guidance
and help provided by Government of India - Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of Gujarat particularly
Home Department, Finance Department and Office of the Director General of Police. Your Board is also
thankful to its Bankers for their continued support. | would also like to appreciate the hard and sincere
efforts put in by all the officers / staff members of the Corporation in the development and progress of
the Corporation.

For and on behalf of Board

: 04-11-2019 D D Patel
. Gandhinagar Chairman
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ANNEXURE - |

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31-03-2019
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

Q)] Registration & Other Details :

1 | CIN U45201GJ1988SGC011453

2 Registration Date 01-11-1988

3 Name of the Company Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited

4 Category / Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares /
State Government Company

5 Address of the Registered office and contact details Behind Lokayukta Bhavan,
Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B,
Gandhinagar-382010.

6 Whether listed company No

7 Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & N.A.

Transfer Agent, if any.

(I Principal Business Activities of the Company :
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No. Product / Service of the company
1 Construction of Buildings 41001 100%

(1 Particulars of holding, subsidiary and associate companies

Holding /
Sr. Name and Address of the
CIN/GLN Subsidiary /
No. Company .
Associate

N.A.
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(V)

Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(A) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning No. of Shares held at the end %
Shareholders of the year [As on 1 April 2018] of the year [As on 31 March 2019] Change
% of % of dL:;igg
Demat Physical Total Total [Demat| Physical Total Total year
Shares Shares
A Promoters
(1) Indian
(@) Individual / HUF Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) State Govt(s) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 [100%/| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 [100% Nil
(d) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(f)  Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Shareholding
of Promoters (A) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100%]| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100% Nil
B Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions
(@) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(d) State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(e) Venture Capital Funds | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
) Insurance Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(9) Flis Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(h)  Foreign Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds
(i)  Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(1) Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(2)  Non-Institutions
(a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(b) Individuals
(i)  Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh
(i) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

shareholders holding
nominal share capital

in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
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(c)  Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overseas Corporate Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Clearing Members Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Bodies D R Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Public Shareholding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C Shares held by custodian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100%]| Nil | 50,00,000 | 50,00,000 |100% Nil
(B) Shareholding of Promoter :
Sr. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of %
No. the year [As on 01-04-2018] the year [As on 31-03-2019] Change
in share
% of total |% of Shares % of total |% of Shares| holding
No. of Shares of Pledged/ No. of Shares of Pledged/ during
Shares the encumbered Shares the encumbered the
Company [tototal shares Company |tototal shares year
1 H. E. Governor of 49,99,993 100 — 49,99,993 100 — —
Gujarat
2 Shri Nalinbhai Nisarta 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
3 Shri D. R. Bhammar 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
4 Shri A. V. Vala 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
5 Smt. Nayanaben K. Patel 1 0.00 — 0 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
6 Shri Jayprakash S. Joshi 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
7 Shri Atulbhai Vakhariya 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
8 Shri Kanubhai D. Suthar 1 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
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9 Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel 0 0.00 — 1 0.00 — —
(As a Nominee of Govt.
of Gujarat)
Total 50,00,000 100% — 50,00,000 100% — —
(C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding
(Please specify, if there is no change) :
Sr. Particulars Shgre_holding at the Cumulat_ive Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
% of total % of total
No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 Smt. Nayanaben K. Patel
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer to
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
year specifying the reasons for as on
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / 23-07-2018
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year 0 00.00
2 Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer to
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Pushpak H. Gandhi
year specifying the reasons for (As a Nominee of
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / Govt. of Gujarat)
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.) as on 05-09-2018
At the end of the year 0 00.00
3 Shri Pushpak H. Gandhi
(As a Nominee of Govt. of Gujarat)
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increse/ Decrese in Transfer from
Promoters Shareholding during the Shri Bharatbhai D. Patel
year specifying the reasons for (As a Nominee of
Increse / Decrese (e.g. allotment / Govt. of Gujarat)
trnasfer / bonus / sweat equity etc.) as on 12-12-2018
At the end of the year 1 00.00
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(D)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders :
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRS) :

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
S(;' For Ez;chharzL;rdeer';op 10 % of total % of total
' No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc) :
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :
Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Sr. Shareholding of each Direptors % of total % of total
No. and eacgelfseoynnl\g?nagerlal No. of Shares of No. of Shares of
Shares the Shares the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus / sweat equity etc) :
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(F)

Indebtendness

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured | Deposits Total
(excluding deposits) Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
* Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
* Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
(i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
(i)  Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
(iii)  Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
(V) Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(A) Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager.
Sr. Particulars of Name of Total
No. Remuneration MD / WTD / Manager Amount
Shri Hasmukh Patel (Managing Director)
1 Gross Salary 20,93,104 20,93,104
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Nil Nil
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Nil Nil
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others, please specify 5,89,115 5,89,115
Total (A) 26,82,219 26,82,219
Ceiling as per the Act Nil Nil

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
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(B)

Remuneration to other directors

No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
Mr. Jainik Mr. Dharmendra — —
Vakil Mirani
1 Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee meeting 13,500 15,000 Nil Nil 28,500
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify 18,300 39,476 Nil Nil 57,776
Total (1) 31,800 54,476 Nil Nil 86,276
2 Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committee meeting Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil
Total (B) = (1+2) 31,800 54,476 Nil | Nil 86,276
Total Managerial Remuneration Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD
No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
Nandan Sunilkumar
Jayantbhai Munshi| Govindji Shah
1 Gross Salary Nil 22,23,678 14,27,941 36,51,619
(a) Salary as per provisions Nil Nil Nil Nil
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s Nil Nil Nil Nil
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil 22,23,678 14,27,941 36,51,619
(VI) Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences : NIL
For and on behalf of Board
Date : 04-11-2019 D D Patel
Place : Gandhinagar Chairman
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended 31-03-2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited
(CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453)

Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road,
Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited (Hereinafter referred
as the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit; we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 (Audit Period) complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We further report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Filing of Forms
and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other records is responsibility of management
and Company, our responsibility is to verify the content of the documents produced before us, make objective
evaluation of the content in respect of compliance and report thereon. We have examined the books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder.

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(i)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder.

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (‘SEBI ACT’) :- (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008.
() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client.
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009.
(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
(vi) Following are some other laws specifically to the Company :
(a) The Employee’s Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.
(b) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
(c)  The Building and other Construction works (Regulation of Employment and Condition of Service) Act, 1996.
(d)  The Building and other Construction worker’'s Welfare Cess Act, 1996.
(e) The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following :

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

We further report that no other specific law applicable to Company except as above as per information provided
by the Company.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The change in the composition of the Board of Directors took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given to
all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. All the decisions were carried out
unanimously and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operation of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place : Ahmedabad For Gaudana & Gaudana
Date : 26-08-2019 (Company Secretaries)

CS Arvind Gaudana
Senior Partner

FCS No. 2838, C.P. No. 2183

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Anne xure-A’ and forms an
integral part of this report.
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To,

ANNEXURE-A

The Members

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited
(CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453)

Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road,
Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010.

Sub. :

Secretarial Audit Report for the F.Y. 2018-19.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

)

)

3

4)

®)

(6)

Place
Date

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Gujarat State Police Housing
Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred as the Company). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our Opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company.

Wherever required, we have issued our preliminary observations and the Company has provided reply /
clarification to our satisfaction and the Company has assured to comply the lapses, wherever occured.
The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of records and procedure
on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

: Ahmedabad For Gaudana & Gaudana
: 26-08-2019 (Company Secretaries)

CS Arvind Gaudana
Senior Partner
FCS No. 2838, C.P. No. 2183
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To,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of
Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation
Limited. (“the Company”) , which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of
Income and Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019; its excess of expenditure after tax and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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)

)

Auditor’ s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eeror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also :

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we inentify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report), Order, 2016 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Anne xure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us, in the “Anne xure B” on the directions and sub-directions issued by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



(3) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

@

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

()]

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Income and Expenditure and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
The Company being a Government Company, provisions of sub section (2) of section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable as per notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5 June, 2015
of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Anne xure C”.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :
The Company being a government company provisions of Section 197 of the Act is not applicable
to the company.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer Note 28 to the financial statements;
(i)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;
(iiiy  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For and on behalf of
R S Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107758W

Rajan B Shah

Partner

Membership No. 101998
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 04-09-2019
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“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our

report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

0

(m

)

(V)

V)

(Vi)

(V1)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets;

(b) The Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed
to cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the
fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical fixed assets have been noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, the company does not hold any immovable property on its name.

(a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at resaonable intervals by the management.

(b) The procedure of physical verification of inventory followed by the management is reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the company is maintaining
proper records of inventory.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax (GST) and
any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March
31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax
outstanding on account of any dispute except as mentioned below :

Name of Statute Nature A.uthorlt'les Whgre Period to which Amount

of dues dispute is pending | amount relates Rs.
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax ITAT A.Y. 2015-16 9,19,360
Total 9,19,360
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(VI

(1X)

X)

(X1)

(X

(X1

(XIV)

(Xv)

(XVI)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions
or from the government and has not issued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt
instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company by virtue of the
provisions of notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5 June, 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
of India, is exempt from the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management,
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

For and on behalf of
R S Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN :

107758W

Rajan B Shah
Partner
Membership No. 101998

UDIN :

Place

Date

19101998AAAAFU2085

: Ahmedabad
. 04-09-2019
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our

report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited
Report under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
For the Financial Year 2018-19

(1) Main Direction :
Sr.No. Questionnaires Response / Remedial Measure
1 Whether the company has clear title / lease deeds Not Applicable
for freehold and leasehold respectively ? If not
please state the area of freehold and leasehold
land for which title / lease deeds are not available ?
2 Whether there are any cases of waiver / write No
off of debts / loans / interest etc. If yes, the
reasons there for and the amount involved.
3 Whether proper records are maintained for invento- Not Applicable
ries lying with third parties & assets received as
gift / grant(s) from the Govt. or other authorities.
(2) Sector Specific Directions : Housing
Sr.No. Questionnaires Response / Remedial Measure
1 Whether the Company follows an accounting The Company maintains project-wise allocation
system that enables to individually ascertain the sheet, which contains details of work payments,
completed cost of each construction contracts / direct expense, indirect expenses and attributed
projects. In the absence of any such system, it Income, if any.
may be seen as to how the Company is ascertain-
ing the individual cost of construction contracts ?
2 Whether the Company has assessed / estimated The Company is engaged in construction activity

in the ongoing contracts and the Company has
made adequate provision for the losses in the
accounts ?

of residential & non-residential buildings, as well
as repairs & maintenance of buildings for Police
& Jail departments on behalf of the Home
Department, Government of Gujarat (GOG).
GOG provides funds for these activities. The net
cost of the completed projects is adjusted against
funds / advance provided by the government.
The company is regularly assessing the ongoing
projects / contracts. As such there does not
result any profit / loss at the year end from the
activities of the corporation as corporation is
working on  “No Profit No Loss” basis.
Accordingly, Statement of Income & Expenditure
account is prepared, Consequently, need of
assessment and provision of Loss does not arise.
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Sr.No.

Questionnaires

Response / Remedial Measure

Evaluate and report on the system of planning,
preparing estimates and awarding the work. List
out the cases where the scope of work has been
increased beyond 10 percent of the original value
of the contract.

Director General of Police provides priority list
for the works to be taken. On the basis of
priority, estimates are prepared based on SOR
(schedule of rates) of R & B department, GOG.
Home Department, Govt. of Gujarat makes
necessary budgetary provision in the budget.
Corporation follows online tender procedure to
procure works contract services.

During the F.Y. 2018-19, as informed to us by the
management, there are no any cases wherein
scope of the works has been increased beyond 10
percentage of the original contract value.

What is sytem regarding payment of interest on
deposits made by other Government depart-
ments in terms of instruction of Finance
department of the State Government ?

The Corporation has not accepted any Interest-
bearing deposits from any government depart-
ments or public.

What is system of accounting for the grants /
subsidies received from Central / State Govern-
ment or its agencies for performing various
activities ? Comment on the cases of diversion
wherein the grants were not utilized for the
purpose for which these were received.

The Government provides necessary funds for
new construction and repairing works of residential
and non-residential buildings for Police / Jail de-
partments, which is treated as an Advance re-
ceived for Works. The net cost of completed
projects / works is adjusted against these ad-
vances and unadjusted balances are shown as
liability in the balance sheet. Further, grants re-
ceived from the State Government for procurement
of specific asset are deducted from the gross value
of asset to arrive at the book value of the asset.

For and on behalf of

R S Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107758W

Rajan B Shah

Partner

Membership No. 101998
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 04-09-2019
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‘“ANNEXURE C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF “GUJ ARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED (GSPHCL)”

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gujarat State Police Housing
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

. Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls :

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

o Auditors’ Responsibility :

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting :

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting :

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

. Opinion :

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Place : Ahmedabad For and on behalf of
Date : 04-09-2019 R S Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 107758W

Rajan B Shah
Partner
Membership No. 101998
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. @ m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



a #,

PERREEHC

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited
Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road,
Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382010.

faw= : Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited, Gandhinagar & @ & 31 March, 2019 EQ)
e 99 & fau ara & e v werear udietes s, U Afaf e -2013 Wi SRT-143(6)(a)
& ITaTa WHIT &l skt T8 WHTUT U | ( Non Review Certificate )

L

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited, Gandhinagar & 31 March, 2019 1 GHME TQ L
% Hed A wifafues e e & gRl d9R S T A Td U & @l wt Si" i | e e
W ‘geten €l # T YA T’ (Non Review Certificate) ST shiH @ TR T ® |

S| ERIRE & WY Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited, Gandhinagar & @l & 31 March,
2019 & U I9 & fau arag & 9% wd HererEn et &, SuAr AfUfE-2013 1 ¥RI-143 (6) (a)
% sfaita ‘gHien &l ®T T8 AT 9’ (Non Review Certificate) Fa™= & W@ E |

(T8 I He@hR 1 iqAfa ¥ S fman s # 0)

o
Sd/-

3T HEAEThRT
(\mHTieR a-3 )

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act,
2013 on the Financial Statements of Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Limited, for the year Ended
31 March, 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of Gujarat State Police Housing Corpoation Limited for the year
ended 31 March, 2019 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion
on these financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them
vide their Audit Report dated 04-09-20109.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to conduct the supplementary
audit of the financial statements of Gujarat State Police Housing Corpoation Limited for the year ended 31
March, 2019, under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(YASHWANT KUMAR)

Place : Rajkot Pr. Accountant General (G&SS Audit)
Dated : 10-10-2019 Gujarat, Rajkot

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. m 31st Annual Report 2018-19



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31-03-2019

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
1 Shareholders’ Funds :
(a) Share Capital 2 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
2 Non-Current Liabilities :
(a) Other Long Term Liabilities — —
(b) Long Term Provisions 3 — 2,68,54,271
3 Current Liabilities :
(a) Trade Payable 4 11,57,42,583 8,95,96,591
(b) Other Current Liabilities 5 7,10,90,83,294 7,24,59,16,324
(c) Short Term Provisions 6 29,55,383 1,21,43,992
Total 7,72,77,81,260 7,87,45,11,178
I ASSETS :
1 Non Current Assets :
(a) Property, Plants & Equipments 7 48,87,769 55,35,960
(b) Long Term Loans and Advances 8 50,000 1,39,172
2 Current Assets :
(a) Inventories 9 85,36,96,229 2,46,53,41,007
(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 91,94,19,089 1,07,33,28,011
(c) Short Term Loans and Advances 11 5,74,18,16,748 3,77,50,02,741
(d) Other Current Assets 12 20,79,11,425 55,51,64,287

Total

7,72,77,81,260

7,87,45,11,178

The notes referred to above are an integral part of Financial Statements.

Significant Accounting Policies as per Note-1

As per our report

For, R. S. Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 107758W

Rajan B. Shah

Partner

Membership No. : 101998
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 04-09-2019

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

HASMUKH PATEL
Managing Director

BRAJESH JHA
Director

JAINIKVAKIL
Director

ARPITARAJPUROHIT
Company Secretary

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 04-09-2019

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

D.D.PATEL
Chairman

S.B.VASAVA
Director

DHARMENDRA MIRANI
Director

SUNIL SHAH
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31-03-2019

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. 2018-19 2017-18
INCOME
| Revenue from Operations 13 66,96,732 1,67,77,238
Il Other Income 14 2,41,34,568 45,90,063
Il Prior Period Income 15 — 1,49,30,939
Total 3,08,31,300 3,62,98,240
EXPENSES
IV | Cost of Building Works 16 1,72,49,22,619 1,95,72,39,995
\% Changes in Inventories 17 1,61,16,44,779 1,65,13,19,912
VI Employee Benefit Expenses 18 14,19,76,067 18,33,64,662
VII | Depreciation 21,87,733 30,55,959
VIII | Other Expenses 19 3,81,18,841 3,43,60,154
Total 3,51,88,50,040 3,82,93,40,682
IX | Excess of Expenditure Over Income before tax (3,48,80,18,740) | (3,79,30,42,442)
X Tax Expenses
Current Tax — —
Deferred Tax — —
Total — —
X1 Excess of Expenditure after Tax (3,48,80,18,740) (3,79,30,42,442)
Less : Transferred to
Works Completed 20 3,48,80,18,740 3,79,30,42,442

Earnings per Equity Share

Basic

Diluted

The notes referred to above are an integral part of Financial Statements.

Significant Accounting Policies as per Note-1

As per our report

For, R. S. Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. : 107758W

Rajan B. Shah Director
Partner

Membership No. : 101998 JAINIKVAKIL
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085 Director

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 04-09-2019

BRAJESH JHA

HASMUKH PATEL
Managing Director

ARPITARAJPUROHIT
Company Secretary

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 04-09-2019

GO

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

D.D.PATEL
Chairman

S.B.VASAVA
Director

DHARMENDRA MIRANI
Director

SUNIL SHAH
Chief Financial Officer
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 2018-19 2018-19 2017-18 2017-18
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
No Loss/Profit Before T ax & extraordinary items
Adjustments for
Depreciation 21,87,733 30,55,959
Deferred Tax Expenses — —
Income Tax and Interest written back — —
Loss on Sale of assets — —
Profit on Sale of assets (4,07,822) —
Asset written off / Reduction in carrying value of assets — —
Operating Profit Before W orking Capital Change 17,79,911 30,55,959
Adjustments for
Inventory 1,61,16,44,778 1,65,13,19,912
Long Term Loans & Advances 89,172 —
Short Term Loans & Advances (1,96,68,14,007) (1,64,83,27,588)
Other Current Assets 34,72,52,862 (55,32,36,861)
Other Long Term Liabilities — —
Trade Payables 2,61,45,992 (12,81,35,605)
Other Current Liabilities (13,68,33,030) (48,90,00,321)
Long Term Provisions (2,68,54,271) 2,68,54,271
Short Term Provisions (91,88,609) 1,07,18,290
Net Change W orking Capital (15,45,57,113) (1,12,98,07,901)
Tax Paid — —
Net Cash Flow from operating activity (A) (15,27,77,202) (1,12,67,51,942)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Pre-Operative Expenses

Purchase of Property, Plants & Equipments (PPE)

(9,13,80,099)

(6,88,101)

Capital WIP

Sale of Property, Plants & Equipments

6,98,761

Interest Received

Net Cash used in investing activities (B)

(9,06,81,338)

(6,88,101)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of Long term Loans & Advances

Govt. Grant received related to Specific Assets (PPE)

8,95,49,618

Repayment of Term Long Borrowing

Dividend & Dividend Tax Paid

Dividend Received

Interest Paid

Net Cash Flow from Financing activities (C) — 8,95,49,618 — —
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent (15,39,08,922) (1,12,74,40,043)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 01-04-2018 1,07,33,28,011 2,20,07,68,054
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31-03-2019 91,94,19,089 1,07,33,28,011

Cash & Cash Equivalents represents Cash & Bank Balances Only

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.

G2
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Notes to the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on 31-03-2019.

(1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard-3
“Cash Flow Statement” notified under the companies act, 1956.
(2) Figures in bracket indicate Cash Outflow.

As per our report

For, R. S. Patel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 107758W

Rajan B. Shah

Partner

Membership No. : 101998
UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 04-09-2019

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

HASMUKH PATEL
Managing Director

BRAJESH JHA
Director

JAINIKVAKIL
Director

ARPITARAJPUROHIT
Company Secretary

Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 04-09-2019

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. @

D.D.PATEL
Chairman

S.B.VASAVA
Director

DHARMENDRA MIRANI
Director

SUNIL SHAH
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTE NO. 1 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Corporate Information :

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd. (GSPHCL) was incorporated on 1st November, 1988 under the
Companies Act, 1956. It is a Government Company with 100% share holding subscribed by the Government
of Gujarat. The main objective of the Corporation is to undertake construction as well as repairs and maintenance
work of residential and non-residential buildings for Police, Jail, Home Guards etc., as per the directives /
requirement of the Home Department, Government of Gujarat.

The main activity of the Corporation is to construct residential / non-residential buildings for Police / Jail
Department for and on behalf of Government of Gujarat. For carrying out these activities, State / Central
Government provide necessary funds / advances / deposits. Till the time funds are actually expended, the same
is parked with Gujarat State Financial Services Ltd. (GSFS) as per Government directives. Interest earned
thereon is credited / refunded to the Government accounts as per Government directives. In case of ‘Deposit
Works’ the same is credited to interest payable to other account. The Corporation completes and hand over
various projects / works at cost including administrative and other expenses (net of income, if any, realized during
the course of operations) to the Government. The cost of completed project is adjusted against
funds / advances provided by the Government / Government Departments. As such, there does not result any
profit / loss at the year end from the activities of the Corporation i.e. working on NO PROFIT NO LOSS basis.
“Statement of Income & Expenditure Account” is prepared and presented accordingly.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement :

These financial statements are prepared on accrual basis of accounting, following historical cost convention,
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), accounting principles generally
accepted in India and comply with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by
the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting principles in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from
those estimates. Any revision to accounting Estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Property, Plants & Equipments and Depreciation / Amortisation :
Property, Plants & Equipments :

Tangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises purchase price,
duties, levies and other directly attributable expenses of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those tangible assets, which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

Advances paid towards acquisition of tangible assets and the cost of assets acquired but not ready for use as
at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided using the written down value method over the estimated useful life
of the asset, in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of tangible assets
purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is
ready to be put to use.

In opinion of the management, the useful life of an asset costing less than Rs. 5,000/- is less than one year from
the date of it is put to use hence, it is fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.
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Intangible Assets :

Intangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation. Cost comprise purchase price,
duties, levies and other directly attributable expenses of bringing the assets to its working condition for the
intended use. Cost is amortised over its useful economic life based on expected benefit.

Impairment of Assets :

In accordance with accounting standard 28 on “Impairment of assets”, the company assesses at each balance
sheet date whether there is an indication that assets of the company may be impaired. Where any such indication
exists the company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. The recoverable amount of the assets (or
where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated at the higher of its
net selling price and its value in use. An impairment charge is recognised whenever the carrying amount of
the asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

Leases :

Lease rent expense represent operating leases which are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Income
& Expenditure, based on terms & conditions of the lease.

Inventory Valuation :

Work in Progress :

The Corporation undertakes various projects relating to construction, maintenance and repairs of residential and
non-residential buildings out of the funds provided by Central / State Government and as per their directives
and requirements of the State Government as “Nodal Agency” on “NO PROFIT NO LOSS” basis. On completion
of projects, they are handed over to the respective Government department and therefore, there remains no
inventory in respect of completed projects / contract.

The valuation of “Work in Progress” has been computed as per the policy of the Corporation in respect to
construction as well as maintenance of projects / contracts, which takes into account the cost of land (wherever
incurred), development of infrastructure, including all utilities thereon, cost of construction, including materials
directly purchased and supplied at the site in the required quantity, direct overheads and Employees benefit
and other expenditure etc. (net of income, if any, realized during the course of operations).

In case of Special Repairs (SR), Minor Original Works (MOW), Jail works, Police Academy works and Deposit
works, expenditure incurred during the year is debited directly to the works and adjusted against respective
Advance / Deposit accounts.

The completed projects which are not handed over and the projects which are handed over but final bills are
not paid/raised are treated as “Work in Progress” and valued at actual cost, as stated above.

The Corporation purchases construction materials (wooden doors / shutters) as and when required and
supplies for works directly at site as per actual quantity required and hence, the same is treated as part of
Work in Progress.

Employee Benefits :
Post employment benefits

Defined Contribution Plans :

The company has Defined Contribution Plans for post employment benefits, charged to Income & Expenditure
Account, for its employees (including on deputation) in form of Provident Fund / Employee’s Pension Fund
administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.
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Defined Benefit Plans :

Funded Plan : The Company has Defined Benefit Plan for post employment benefits in the form of Gratuity
(administered through Trust) and leave encashment for all employees funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Liability for the above Defined Benefit Plans is provided on the basis of independent actuarial valuation report, as
at the balance sheet date. The actuarial method used for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The actuarial gains and losses arising during the year are recognized in the Income & Expenditure Account
for the year.

Advances / Deposits received from the Government / Government Departments against works

Advances / Deposits received from the Home / Jail Department and other offices functioning under it for carrying
out various types of works is recognized on its actual receipt or if there is reasonable assurance as to its receipt
and also when terms & conditions for sanction of such advance / deposit are capable of compliance, the same
is accounted for on accrual basis.

When there is reasonable assurance about receipt of funds and in anticipation thereof an expenditure is incurred
or when expenditure exceeds actual funds received and there is a reasonable assurance of receipt of remaining
funds in future from Government, the same is treated as “Loans and Advances”.

Contingencies and Provisions :

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Revenue Recognition :

The company acts as a nodal agency for the execution of the construction / repairs and maintenance work of
residential and non residential projects awarded by the State Government / Central Government / Government
Departments on “No Profit No Loss” basis. Entire cost incurred on these projects, including employees cost and
administrative cost (net ofincome, if any, realized during course of activities), is adjusted against the fund provided
by the agencies awarding the respective construction projects and therefore, no revenue accrues to the company.

Centage charges recovered on certain works contracts (Other than Home Department) on expenditure incurred
during the year is treated as “Income from Operations”.  The Corporation has recovered the Centage charges
on the accrual basis based on the expenditure incured on respective projects.

The Corporation, based on the tender conditions, takes Security Deposit as well as Deduct Time Limit Deposits
for its various projects. Based on tender terms & conditions, the Security Deposits and Time Limit Deposits
are either released / adjusted or treated as “Income” as the case may be.

When Security Deposit remains unclaimed even after completion of project and its defect liability period, the
same is released after due verification and obtaining No Due Certificate from the concerned Executive Engineer.

Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow
Statement and presents the cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash
and Cash equivalents presented in the cash flow statement consist of cash on hand and bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

NOTE NO. 2 : SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Share Capital

Share Capital

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Authorised Share Capital

50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each. 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each. 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Total 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
(A) Reconciliation of nos. of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018

Equity Shares Nos. Equity Shares Nos.

At the beginning of the year 50,00,000 50,00,000
Shares Issued during the year 0 0
Shares bought back during the year 0 0
At the end of the year 50,00,000 50,00,000

(B) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares :

° The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of

Rs. 100/- per share.

Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company has not issued any share by way of bonus or without payment

being received in cash in pursuant to any contract during the period of last

five years.

The Company has not bought back any share during the period of last five years.

In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of the equity shares

would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution

of all preferantial amounts, in proportion to the amount paid up on the equity

shares held by the share holders.

(C) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :

Name of Shareholder

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

% of Holding

% of Holding

49,99,993 nos. of Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- fully paid up in the name of
H. E. Governer of Gujarat and 7 nos. of Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- fully

100% 100%
paid up in the name of H. E. Governer of Gujarat jointly with nominees
of Govt. of Gujarat. (Totalling 50,00,000 shares).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2019 31-03-2018

NOTE NO. 3: LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note No. 6.1) — 2,68,54,271
Total — 2,68,54,271
NOTE NO. 4 : TRADE PAYABLE
Traders under MSMED Act [Refer Note No. 4.1] 11,03,599 2,20,132
Others [Refer Note No. 4.2] 11,46,38,984 8,93,76,459
Total 11,57,42,583 8,95,96,591

Note No. 4.1 : Particulars of Interest as per MSMED Act 2006, based on intimation received from suppliers.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end of each accounting year

2018-19

2017-18

Principal Amount

11,03,599

2,20,132

Interest Amount

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Note No. 4.2 : Trade payable pertains to works contracts, balance confirmation not cal

and reconciliation, if any.

led for and are subject to confirmation

NOTE NO. 5: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Advance / Funds received from Govt. of India / Govt. of Gujarat / Other

GOG departments for works [Refer Note No. 5.1]

6,49,36,31,460

6,67,84,93,977

Other Payables 12,87,007 5,90,228
Security Deposits 32,77,11,620 31,01,46,247
Other Deposits 9,42,30,807 8,26,13,670
Time Limit Deposits 2,28,69,476 6,87,88,575
Unpaid Expenses [Refer Note No. 5.2] 9,14,79,579 2,43,89,188
Statutory Dues Incl. PF and TDS 1,87,87,221 4,76,54,630
Pass-through Interest payable to the Government [Refer Note No. 5.3] 1,82,10,898 60,33,731
Pass-through Interest payable to other departments [Refer Note No. 5.3] 4,08,41,676 2,71,48,059
Insurance Claim — 24,471
TDS Refundable to Others 33,550 33,550

Total

7,10,90,83,294

7,24,59,16,324

Note No. 5.2 : This amount includes salary difference of Rs. 1,62,40,800 (P.Y. Rs. 2,27,59,926) to be paid to Employees of the
corporation on account of 7th pay implemented to the corporation. The Government of Gujarat vide GR No. PHC/102016/1015/
L, Dated 06-12-2018 made applicable recommendation of seventh pay commission to the employees of the Corporation.
Expenses booked / provided in the / books of accounts for the period from 01-01-2016 to 31-03-2018. However, difference is to
be paid from 01-10-2017 as per this GR. Pay difference for the period from 01-01-2016 to 30-09-2017 will be paid after receipt
of Government orders in this regard.

Note No. 5.3 : The interest received on deployment of surplus / parked funds received from the State Government for execution
of various construction projects is to be credited and returned back to the Government as per the directives of Government of
Gujarat vide Home department letter No. BGT/2011/953(6)/L, Dt. 07-03-2014. Similarly interest received on deployment of surplus
funds received from other departments (Deposit works) credited and returned back to them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 5.1 : Advance / Funds received from Govt. of India / Govt. of Gujarat / Other GOG Departments for works

(Amount in Rs.)

Opening Receipt / Cost of Closing
Particulars Balance as at Adjustment Wo(r:kosn;pFla%ﬁ‘i?ld / Balance
Funds From GOG / GOI
For Works
Funds from GOG for 88,02,96,398 2,18,12,00,000 1,40,27,61,805 1,65,87,34,593
Residential Buildings (2,02,94,20,195) (1,43,99,99,000) (2,58,91,22,797) (88,02,96,398)
Funds from GOG for 47,74,28,420 62,86,07,367 31,76,28,499 78,84,07,288
Non Residential Buildings (1,04,14,01,254) (63,09,68,126) (1,19,49,40,960) (47,74,28,420)
Funds from GOG for ACB Buildings 13,80,16,697 3,77,00,000 16,41,57,301 1,15,59,396
(12,89,66,833) (1,00,00,000) (9,50,136) (13,80,16,697)
Funds from GOG for BADP Works 0 14,96,300 1,60,318 13,35,982
(0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds from GOI for 0 0 0 0
Coastal Area Dev. Works (-97,46,990) (3,13,24,232) (2,15,77,242) (0)
Funds from GOG for FSL Works 6,78,89,557 21,00,000 49,01,983 6,50,87,574
(2,38,08,535) (4,90,00,000) (49,18,978) (6,78,89,557)
Funds from GOG for 70,75,110 4,28,86,000 1,62,65,815 3,36,95,295
Home Guard Works (19,24,12,272) (3,38,20,000) (21,91,57,162) (70,75,110)
Funds from GOG for Jail Work 63,62,50,398 1,08,45,02,178 1,14,32,80,864 57,74,71,712
(20,72,87,581) (71,89,89,000) (29,00,26,183) (63,62,50,398)
Funds from GOG for Karai Project 3,78,85,210 0 3,56,12,610 22,72,600
(3,79,48,990) (0) (63,780) (3,78,85,210)
Funds from GOG/GOI for 76,31,31,449 0 39,32,98,342 36,98,33,107
MPF Construction (88,09,00,478) (0) (11,77,69,029) (76,31,31,449)
Funds from GOG for 32,56,38,465 30,87,57,141 40,29,63,793 23,14,31,814
Repairs and Maint. Works (39,85,18,741) (29,50,00,651) (36,78,80,927) (32,56,38,465)
Funds from GOG for 92,23,36,799 78,00,00,000 79,58,07,049 90,65,29,750
Trible Area Dev. Works (55,86,61,611) (44,00,00,000) (7,63,24,812) (92,23,36,799)
Funds from GOG for 6,80,05,453 0 4,47,66,152 2,32,39,301
Wireless Tower and Ariel Mast (8,79,17,703) (0) (1,99,12,250) (6,80,05,453)
Funds from GOG for 26,25,00,000 17,42,000 21,65,49,887 4,76,92,113
Command Control Centers (0) (29,40,00,000) (3,15,00,000) (26,25,00,000)
Funds from GOG (IT Dept) for 82,12,624 0 1,07,03,820 (-24,91,196)
SPD Installation for Police Stations (0) (91,98,139) (9,85,515) (82,12,624)
Funds from Complaint Authority 0 56,83,895 39,31,207 17,52,688
for Renovation Works 0) (0) (0) (0)
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Funds from GOG for 0 11,11,681 9,06,405 2,05,276
Repairing work of FA Home (0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds from GOG for 0 15,00,000 14,81,610 18,390
Chairman Vehicle (0) (0) 0) (0)
Funds From Other Departments

as a Deposit W orks (Note No. 5a)

Funds From Agriculture Deptt. 96,21,679 0 0 96,21,679
for STL / Pesticide Works (6,36,69,894) (0) (5,40,48,215) (96,21,679)
Funds From Civil Defence for 20,56,720 1,54,522 14,422,211 7,69,031
Control Room at Bhuj (90,86,605) (6,13,496) (76,43,381) (20,56,720)
Funds From DFCCI for 0 0 0 0
Valsad Project (-6,33,734) (11,22,005) (4,88,271) 0)
Funds From Various SP / DGP 96,95,049 10,00,000 21,07,144 85,87,905
for Community Hall Works (96,95,049) (0) (0) (96,95,049)
Funds From DGP for 3,09,27,599 0 86,85,471 2,22,42,128
Archery - Chhotaudepur (3,92,69,124) (50,00,000) (1,33,41,525) (3,09,27,599)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 16,95,612 0 0 16,95,612
Trainee Hostel Bldg. Godhara Works (63,71,735) (0) (46,76,123) (16,95,612)
Funds From Forest Deptt. 0 0 0 0
for Ambaji Works (18,90,359) (1,16,253) (20,06,612) (0)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 21,58,420 0 0 21,58,420
Balundra, Sakarveni, Virampur Works (52,93,006) (0) (31,34,586) (21,58,420)
Funds From Forest Deptt. 4,71,571 0 8,452 4,63,119
for Modasa - Aravali (44,48,822) (0) (39,77,251) (4,71,571)
Funds From Forest Deptt. 0 0 0 0
for A-3 Units Himmatnagar (2,70,225) (16,868) (2,87,093) (0)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 5,90,826 0 0 5,90,826
Dholwan, Bedi, Jadisimbal Dist. S.K. (41,55,884) (0) (35,65,058) (5,90,826)
Funds From Forest Deptt. 13,67,924 0 0 13,67,924
for Satlasana Works (9,90,566) (4,00,000) (22,642) (13,67,924)
Funds From Guj. Water Shade 95,584 0 0 95,584
Management (95,584) (0) (0) (95,584)
Funds From Guj. Seeds Corp. 61,13,706 0 9,62,128 51,51,578
for Pilwai Works (1,11,32,076) (12,35,700) (62,54,070) (61,13,706)
Funds From GSFDC 1,10,09,900 0 49,29,017 60,80,883
for Pharmacy at Por Vadodara (4,71,698) (1,12,00,000) (6,61,798) (1,10,09,900)
Funds From Horticulture / Bagayat Deptt. 4,09,04,772 0 2,56,64,605 1,52,40,167
for Fruit Nursery & Vadrad Projects (Ph I) (1,82,88,262) (5,29,71,840) (3,03,55,330) (4,09,04,772)
Funds From Horticulture Deptt. 2,37,39,083 0 1,26,99,126 1,10,39,957
for Vadrad Works (Ph 1) (2,37,73,585) (0) (34,502) (2,37,39,083)
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Funds From Information and 12,39,929 0 0 12,39,929
Broad Casting Deptt. (12,39,929) (0) (0) (12,39,929)
Funds From MP / MLA 17,00,271 0 9,000 16,91,271
for Children Park at Ahmedabad (65,82,519) (0) (48,82,248) (17,00,271)
Funds From Sainik Welfare 1,06,930 0 0 1,06,930
for Work at Rajkot (1,06,930) (0) (0) (1,06,930)
Funds From Sainik Welfare 17,84,769 0 17,02,273 82,496
for Work at Baroda (16,03,773) (2,00,000) (19,004) (17,84,769)
Funds From Sheep Dev. Corp. 75,47,170 0 73,78,965 1,68,205
for Asoda Works (75,47,170) (0) (0) (75,47,170)
Funds From Sheep Dev. Corp. 12,68,832 9,74,250 22,43,082 0
for Lalpur Jamnagar Works (13,20,755) (11,65,000) (12,16,923) (12,68,832)
Funds From School Text Board 46,24,409 10,91,311 57,15,720 0
for Nirnaynagar Works (2,98,42,641) 0) (2,52,18,232) (46,24,409)
Funds From Tribal Dev. Office 39,79,733 0 17,29,717 22,50,016
for Guest House (73,71,040) (0) (33,91,307) (39,79,733)
Funds From Tribal Dev. -32,37,284 14,35,607 0 -18,01,677
Resi. Edu. Inst. Society (—44.80.256) (12,42,972) (0) (-32,37,284)
Funds From Collector Rajkot for 4,71,698 0 4,61,812 9,886
Pond Work at Ghanteshwar (0) (5,00,000) (28,302) (4,71,698)
Funds From CP Ahmedabad for 44,64,865 3,16,00,000 3,96,13,489 (-35,48,624)
Command Control (0) (1,92,00,000) (1,47,35,135) (44,64,865)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for Training 24,76,199 51,10,800 20,59,532 55,27,467
Center at Kakarapar Wankla Works (0) (27,89,200) (3,13,001) (24,76,199)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for Chetana 4,46,428 10,00,000 1,25,463 13,20,965
/ Aranyabhavan for Consl. of Suits (0) (5,00,000) (53,572) (4,46,428)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for Training 22,43,207 28,74,900 49,98,724 1,19,383
Ceneter at Dungarda Dang Works (0) (25,25,100) (2,81,893) (22,43,207)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 6,25,000 0 0 6,25,000
Botad Works (0) (7,00,000) (75,000) (6,25,000)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 48,15,350 0 17,03,711 31,11,639
D-01 E-01 Morbi Works (0) (54,00,000) (5,84,650) (48,15,350)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 16,40,468 0 0 16,40,468
Division Office Morbi Works (0) (18,37,324) (1,96,856) (16,40,468)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 4,46,428 0 0 4,46,428
Division Office Amreli Works (0) (5,00,000) (53,572) (4,46,428)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 31,25,000 35,00,000 3,75,000 62,50,000
Godown & C-01 Unit at Vyara (0) (35,00,000) (3,75,000) (31,25,000)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 1,32,64,165 1,99,00,000 21,32,141 3,10,32,024
Lunawada Works (0) (1,48,81,289) (16,17,124) (1,32,64,165)
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Funds From Forest Deptt. for 53,65,179 22,73,000 2,43,536 73,94,643
Qrts at Chhotaudepur (0) (60,09,000) (6,43,821) (53,65,179)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for Range 75,89,286 0 0 75,89,286
Office at Khambhalia Devbhoomidwarka (0) (85,00,000) (9,10,714) (75,89,286)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 0 3,04,00,000 32,57,142 2,71,42,858
Godown & Div. Offices Repairing (0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for 8,92,857 0 0 8,92,857
Veraval Una Works (0) (10,00,000) (1,07,143) (8,92,857)
Funds from Forest Deptt for Research Center/ 4,23,729 2,49,75,000 26,75,893 2,27,22,836
Executive Hostel Bldg. at Sec-25 G'nagar (0) (5,00,000) (76,271) (4,23,729)
Funds from GBRC for Lab 0 5,00,000 3,17,038 1,82,962
Renovation work at Gandhinagar (0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds From GSPCB for 32,65,311 10,36,34,500 2,10,17,097 8,58,82,714
5 Offices (0) (38,40,000) (5,74,689) (32,65,311)
Funds From GSTES for 4,23,728 8,48,26,000 90,88,500 7,61,61,228
Chitraval Works (0) (5,00,000) (76,272) (4,23,728)
Funds From School Text Board 4,71,698 10,00,00,000 1,19,72,036 8,84,99,662
for Godown at Sector-25 G’nagar (0) (5,00,000) (28,302) (4,71,698)
Funds From Horticulture Mission for 5,58,82,580 18,84,300 1,91,66,822 3,86,00,058
Sunsi, Chanvai, Majivana, Petlad Works (0) (5,99,25,396) (40,42,816) (5,58,82,580)
Funds from Horticulture for 0 3,24,00,000 35,77,404 2,88,22,596
Dhangadhra Works (0) (0) 0) (0)
Funds From Forest Deptt. for -11,068 1,92,70,400 20,64,685 1,71,94,647
Girls’ Hostel Bldg. at Rajpipla (0) (0) (11,068) (-11,068)
Funds from Forest Dept. for 0 15,00,000 1,60,714 13,39,286
House at Dhari (0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds from MP for Paver Block at 0 3,75,000 40,178 3,34,822
Sector-27 Gandhinagar (0) (0) (0) (0)
Funds From Collector Palanpur for 4,46,430 0 4,85,615 (-39,185)
Road Work at Mavsari (0) (5,00,000) (53,570) (4,46,430)
Parking Funds From

GOG / DGP / Others

Parking Fund From DGP under 71,65,13,573 0 57,30,50,402 14,34,63,171
MHA / MPF (Note No. 5b) (38,13,73,943) (52,42,38,879) (18,90,99,249) (71,65,13,573)
Parking Fund From DGP 3,34,67,115 2,92,92,141 41,064 6,27,18,192
for CCTNS Project (3,20,70,207) (13,96,908) (0) (3,34,67,115)
Parking Fund From DGP for 29,81,070 0 0 29,81,070
P/Station site Preparation (29,81,070) (0) (0) (29,81,070)
Parking Fund From Add. DGP 74,81,12,000 0 37,76,000 74,43,36,000
(Tech. Services) (75,00,00,000) (0) (18,88,000) (74,81,12,000)
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Parking Fund From Add. DGP 51,53,125 0 7,03,972 44,49,153
(Intelligence) (2,94,50,000) (17,99,464) (2,60,96,339) (51,53,125)
Parking Fund From 10,020 0 0 10,020
CP A’bad for Lap Top (10,020) (0) (0) (10,020)
Parking Fund From 21,004 0 0 21,004
MP / MLA Pota Court (45,90,000) (15,30,000) (60,98,996) (21,004)
Parking Fund From 2,70,408 0 0 2,70,408
Prohibition for Furniture (2,00,00,000) (3,64,766) (2,00,94,358) (2,70,408)
Parking Fund From 25,00,000 0 0 25,00,000
Addl. DGP under CSK 0) (25,00,000) (0) (25,00,000)
Parking Fund From 19,23,81,788 0 0 19,23,81,788
Addl. DGP Narcotics (0) (19,23,81,788) (0) (19,23,81,788)
Parking Fund From 11,03,00,000 13,16,00,000 17,18,00,000 7,01,00,000
DGP for Megacity Ahmedabad (0) (11,03,00,000) (0) (11,03,00,000)
Parking Fund From 6,37,200 0 0 6,37,200
DG CID Crime & Railways (0) (6,37,200) (0) (6,37,200)
Parking Fund from GOG IT Cell 0 70,09,200 0 70,09,200
for CP A’bad Cyber Crime (0) (0) 0) (0)
TOTAL OF CURRENT YEAR 6,67,84,93,977 5,71,58,67,493 5,90,53,62,340 6,49,36,31,460
TOTAL OF PREVIOUS YEAR (7,06,22,36,664) (4,99,49,42,688) (5,36,84,69,655) (6,67,84,93,977)

Note No. 5a : Denote advance for Repair / Renovation Works as Deposit Works.

Note No. 5b : Denote amount provided by Government of Gujarat under the Scheme of Modernization of Police Force

(MPF) - GOI, to be utilized by the DGP Gujarat State for earmarked.

Note No. 5c : Previous year figures are shown in the bracket. (Regrouped & Reclassified wherever necessary so as

to compare with current year’'s presentation)

Note No. 5d : Cost of Completed Works / directly paid to concerned authorities / Service tax / GST amount on grants received.

NOTE NO. 6 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision Employee Benefits

Gratuity [Refer Note No. 6.1] 26,82,407 59,75,865
Leave encashment [Refer Note No. 6.1] 2,72,976 61,68,127
Total 29,55,383 1,21,43,992
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 6.1 :

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS : GRATUITY & LEAVE ENCASHMENT

As per the revised Accounting Standard-15 (AS-15) “Employee Benefits” the company has recognised in the financial

statement in respect of Employee Benefits schemes as per actuarial valuation as at 31st March, 2019

The details of Employee Benefit for the year on account of Gratuity which is in the nature of Defined Benefit Plan &

Leave Encashment (both long term funded benefits), are as under :

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

Gratuity

Leave Encashment

Changes in Present Value of Obligations

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

As at 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Present Value of Obligations at the beginning of the year 8,98,42,802 5,45,33,667 4,94,36,714 3,95,60,134
Current Service Cost 59,46,814 51,55,099 8,10,257 7,76,953
Interest Cost 67,92,116 38,82,797 37,37,416 28,16,682
Past Service Cost-Vested benefit incurred during year — 3,22,48,659 — —
Benefits Paid (64,79,548) (16,15,102) (37,19,656) (7,52,840)
Acturial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations - Financial assumptions (1,03,888) (16,75,221) (72,078) (11,15,682)
Acturial (Gain) / Loss on Obligations - Experience (45,14,673) (26,87,097) (5,85,613) 81,51,467
Present Value of Obligations at the end of the year 9,14,83,623 8,98,42,802 4,96,07,040 4,94,36,714
Net Assets / (Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018
Present value of Funded Obligations 9,14,83,623 8,98,42,802 4,96,07,040 4,94,36,714
Fair Value of Plan Assets 8,88,01,216 5,70,12,667 4,93,34,064 4,32,68,588
Assets / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (26,82,407) | (3,28,30,135) (2,72,976) (61,68,126)
Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018 |As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 5,70,12,667 5,31,07,965 4,32,68,588 4,01,40,153
Expected Return on Plan Assets 43,10,158 37,81,287 32,71,105 28,57,979
Contributions 3,28,27,852 14,27,581 61,65,815 7,59,210
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Experience 11,30,087 3,10,936 3,48,212 2,64,086
Benefit Paid (64,79,548) (16,15,102) (37,19,656) (7,52,840)
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 8,88,01,216 5,70,12,667 4,93,34,064 4,32,68,588
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenditure Account As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018 As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018
Current Service Cost 59,46,814 51,55,099 8,10,257 7,76,953
Interest Cost 24,81,958 1,01,510 4,66,311 (41,297)
(Expected Return on Plan Assets) — —
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the year (57,48,648) (46,73,254) (10,05,903) 67,71,699
Past Service Cost-Vested benefit incurred during year — 3,22,48,659 — —
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Income & Expenditure 26,80,124 3,28,32,014 2,70,665 75,07,355
Actuarial Assumptions As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018 |As at 31-03-2019 |As at 31-03-2018
Discount Rate (per annum) 7.59% 7.56% 7.59% 7.56%
Annual Increase in Salary Costs p.a. 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of Return on Plan Asset 7.59% 7.56% 7.59% 7.56%
Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement age of employees (years) 58 58 58 58

Leave availment pattern

The balance leave is available for encashment on separation

from the Company.

The estimate of future salary increase, considered in the acturial valuation, taken on account of inflation, security, promotion

and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE NO. 7 : PROPERTY, PLANTS & EQUIPMENTS (Amount in Rs.)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Particulars As Addition | Adjust- Govt. As As For Adjust- As As As
at during ment/ Grant at at the ment/ at at at
01-04-2018 the Deduc- | Related [ 31-03-2019| 01-04-2018| Year Deduc- | 31-03-2019| 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
Year tion to tion
during | Specific during
the Assets the
Year Year
Office Building 10,37,169 | 4,90,23,597 | 10,37,169 | 4,90,23,597 —| 10,37,168 —| 10,37,168 — — —
Furniture & Fixtures 88,37,070 | 3,90,95,281 | 58,18,738 | 3,90,44,411 [ 30,69,202 | 76,41,382 2,49,672 | 5527,801 | 23,63,253 7,05,949 11,95,688
Vehicles 1,28,09,091 | 14,81,610 — | 14,81,610 | 1,28,09,091 | 1,04,94,651 7,18,181 —11,12,12,832 15,96,259 23,14,440
Office Equipments 80,91,336 9,80,528 — —| 90,71,864 | 71,07,257 5,94,437 — | 77,01,694 13,70,170 9,84,079
Technical Instruments 2,43,308 5,496 — — 2,48,804 1,83,009 17,186 — 2,00,195 48,609 60,299
Computers 82,36,130 7,93,587 — — | 90,29,717 | 72,54,678 6,08,257 — | 78,62,935 11,66,782 9,81,452
Electrification 7,271,937 — 7,217,936 — 1 7,217,936 — 7,217,935 1 — 1
Grand Total Current Year 3,99,82,041 | 9,13,80,099 | 75,83,843 | 8,95,49,618 | 3,42,28,679 | 3,44,46,081 | 21,87,733 | 72,92,904 | 2,93,40,910 48,87,769 55,35,960
Grand Total Previous Year 3,92,93,940 6,88,101 — — | 3,99,82,041 | 3,13,90,122 | 30,55,959 — | 3,44,46,081 55,35,960 —

The Corporation has shifted to new office premises w.e.f. 01-08-2018 for which priority is provided by the Office of the DGP, Gujarat vide letter no. E/MKN/1/
Priority/2013-14/1691/2013, Dt. 14-10-2013 and Home Department Government of Gujarat had also approved the same vide order no. PHC/2009/453/L, Dt. 28-05-2014
under Non residential construction scheme.

The Total Expenditure of Rs. 8,80,68,008/- incurred thereon (Including cost of Furniture) is booked and adjusted against funds provided for non residential scheme.
As per Accounting Standard 10 - “Property, Plant & Equipments”, cost of these self-constructed assets are determined using the same principles as the corporation
makes similar asset in its normal course of operations. In view of this, the same is treated at part with other non-residential projects.

Amount of Rs. 8,80,68,008/- is allocated from the grant received from the Government of Gujarat with respect to the new office premises. The same is deducted
from gross value of the assets (Office Building, Furniture & Fixtures), to arrive at its book value as per the Accounting Standard 12 - “Accounting for Government Grants”,
considering grant related to specific fixed asset. Similarly grant of Rs. 14,81,610/- received from the government of Gujarat is deducted from gross value of the vehicle.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2019 31-03-2018
NOTE NO. 8 : LONG TERM LOANS AND AD VANCES
Considered good unless otherwise stated
(A) Secured considered good
House building Loan to staff 0 3,750
Less : Current maturity of Long Term Loan [Refer Note No. 10] 0 (3,750)
Total 0 0
(B) Unsecured
Deposit for - GSWAN Connection and Rent 50,000 1,39,172
Total 50,000 1,39,172
NOTE NO. 9 : INVENTORIES (AT COST)
Work in Progress [Refer Note No. 9.1] 85,36,96,229 2,46,53,41,007
Total 85,36,96,229 2,46,53,41,007
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE NO. 9.1 : WORK IN PROGRESS (AT COST)
(Amount in Rs.)
Sr. Purpose Opening Expenditure Total Adjustment Closing
No. Balance as at during during Balance as at
01-04-2018 the year the year 31-03-2019
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
1 | AREIAL Mast 2,57,84,347 3,59,52,671 6,17,37,018 4,47,66,152 1,69,70,866
(0)| (4,40,01,681)| (4,40,01,681)| (1,82,17,334)| (2,57,84,347)
2 | Resi. Buildings 1,11,71,12,668| 23,65,94,712|1,35,37,07,380| 1,16,90,61,805| 18,46,45,575
(2,65,06,74,167) | (89,38,94,361) |(3,54,45,68,528) |(2,42,74,55,860) |(1,11,71,12,668)
3 | ACB Offices & PS 12,50,08,098 3,62,24,278| 16,12,32,376| 16,01,18,015 11,14,361
(7,00,23,879) | (5,49,84,219) | (12,50,08,098) (0)| (12,50,08,098)
4 | Non Resi. Buildings 16,56,57,798| 38,43,92,212| 55,00,60,010| 17,08,64,503| 37,91,95,507
(45,74,31,064) | (24,76,68,316) | (70,50,99,380) | (53,94,31,582) | (16,56,67,798)
5 | Rep. & Maint. Works 0| 15,16,17,365| 15,16,17,365| 15,16,17,365 0
(0)| (15,64,81,768) | (15,64,81,768) | (15,64,81,768) 0)
6 | BADP Works 0 0 0 0 0
(0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
7 | Jail Works 0| 28,58,44,684| 28,58,44,684| 28,58,44,684 0
(0)| (16,44,66,885) | (16,44,66,885) | (16,44,66,885) 0)
8 | MPF Construction 39,00,51,583| 15,25,04,559| 54,25,56,142| 39,32,98,342| 14,92,57,800
(33,42,86,392) | (17,35,34,219) | (50,78,20,611) | (11,77,69,028) | (39,00,51,583)
9 | Home Guard Works 13,12,832 2,48,13,990 2,61,26,822 1,16,70,887 1,44,55,935
(19,92,54,413) | (1,75,92,010) | (21,68,46,423) | (21,55,33,591) (13,12,832)
10 | TASP 61,64,63,123| 18,61,92,215| 80,26,55,338| 71,47,78,547 8,78,76,791
(39,16,26,275) | (25,95,78,103) | (65,12,04,378)| (3,47,41,255)| (61,64,63,123)
11 | Coastal Works 0 0 0 0 0
(1,33,64,730) (82,12,512) | (2,15,77,242)| (2,15,77,242) 0)
12 | Command Control Works 80,51,477| 22,52,56,316| 23,33,07,793| 21,63,63,245 1,69,44,548
(0) (80,51,477) (80,51,477) (0) (80,51,477)
13 | SPD Syatem in Police Stations 0 1,07,03,820 1,07,03,820 1,07,03,820 0
(0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
14 | Deposit Works 0 11,86,41,783 11,86,41,783 11,86,41,783 0
0)| (9,73,04,117)| (9,73,04,117)| (9,73,04,117) (0)
15 | FSL Works 0 79,11,829 79,11,829 46,76,983 32,34,846
(0) (0) (0) (0) (0)
16 | Karai Works 1,58,89,082 1,97,23,528 3,56,12,610 3,56,12,610 0
©)| (1,59,52,862)| (1,59,52,862) (63,780) | (1,58,89,082)
Total 2,46,53,41,008 | 1,87,63,73,961 | 4,34,17,14,969 | 3,48,80,18,740| 85,36,96,229
(4,11,66,60,920) ((2,14,17,22,530) |(6,25,83,83,450) |(3,79,30,42,442) |(2,46,53,41,007)

Note No. 9.2 : Figures shown in bracket () are that of previous year.

Note No. 9.3 : Details given above shows projects taken up for and on behalf of various Government departments against
advance / deposit received from them. All the above projects were in progress at the year end and as per the accounting
policy adopted by the Corporation, till the time the projects are handed over to the beneficiary for use, they are treated

and shown as “WORK IN PROGRESS".

Note No. 9.4 : Project wise details of “Works Completed” and adjusted against advance / deposit received from Government /
various Government departments are reflected Column No. 6 above, Refer Note No. 20 - Works Completed.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2019 31-03-2018
NOTE NO. 10 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Bank Balance
Current accounts 37,62,02,166 79,88,49,223
Saving account [Refer Note No. 10.1] 54,14,44,674 27,42,30,866
Cheques in transit 16,04,448 61,140
(b) Cash Balance
Cash on hand 1,67,801 1,86,782
Total 91,94,19,089 1,07,33,28,011
Note No. 10.1 : Balance in Savings A/cs. are of Designated Projects.
NOTE NO. 11 : SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good unless otherwise stated
Other loan and advances
(A) Secured
Current maturity of House building Loan [Note No. 8] — 3,750
Advance to Contractors 35,70,873 —

(B) Unsecured

Inter corporate deposit [ICD] with Gujarat State Fin. Services Ltd.

5,68,83,58,331

3,67,38,71,967

Sundry Deposits / Debtors for Works Contract Completed / WIP 88,28,886 49,68,089
Advance to Staff 34,318 21,326
Prepaid Expenses 12,30,534 11,11,102
LIC - Leave Encashment — —
Balance with Revenue Authority

Advance Income Taxes / TDS receivable / Excess TDS deposited 1,10,18,927 5,56,220
Input CGST / SGST / IGST (Net) 2,80,95,646 9,33,35,907
Input CGST / SGST - Not Due 6,79,233 11,34,380

Total

5,74,18,16,748

3,77,50,02,741

NOTE NO. 12 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(A) Secured considered good

Interest on House building loan to staff - Accrued but not due 3,98,295 7,98,495

Grant receivable from GOG 19,63,00,000 55,24,64,511
(B) Unsecured considered good

Interest on ICD - Accrued but not due 1,12,13,130 19,01,281

Total 20,79,11,425 55,51,64,287

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rs.)

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
NOTE NO. 13 : REVENUE FROM OPERATION
Centage Charges Income (Refer Note No. 13.1) 66,97,732 1,67,77,238
Total 66,96,732 1,67,77,238

Note No. 13.1 : Due to change in accounting policy for revenue recognition, during accounting year 2017-18, the amount of centage charges for the year

2017-18 includes Rs. 1,03,42,760/- relating to accounting years prior to 2017-18. Consequently, the amount transferred to work completed and works in

progress for the year 2017-18 is higher by the said amount. The previous year figures for the same is not comparable to this extent.

NOTE NO. 14 : OTHER INCOME

Bank Interest — 8,669
Miscelleneous Income 15,584 80,401
Interest on House Building Advance — 2,326
Profit on Sale of Assets 4,07,822 —
EMD Forefeitted 2,81,052 3,35,291
Interest on Income Tax — 1,02,502
Testing Charges Recovered — 21,90,500
Dismentling Income 1,27,77,179 —
Examination Fees 5,652,172 —
Tender Fees (Refer Note No. 19.1) 1,01,00,759 18,70,374
Total 2,41,34,568 45,90,063
NOTE NO. 15 : PRIOR PERIOD INCOME

Penalty Recovered — 1,49,30,939
Total — 1,49,30,939
NOTE NO. 16 : COST OF BUILDING WORKS

Construction Material consumed [door shutters] in Works 96,38,724 4,16,37,242
Payment to and provision for measured works 1,61,76,47,751 1,85,53,89,207
Development and other charges [Refer Note No. 16.1] 9,76,36,144 6,02,13,546

Total 1,72,49,22,619 1,95,72,39,995
NOTE NO. 16.1 :

Consultancy Expenditure 2,68,74,722 2,33,71,701
Project Expenses 3,66,04,561 11,20,587
Electric Connection Charges 1,62,68,298 3,11,32,318
Water / Drainage Connection Charges 1,47,466 4,73,311
Insurance Expenses 3,78,245 13,48,781
SBC Testing Expenditure 1,73,62,853 —
Swachh Bharat Cess — 27,66,848
Total 9,76,36,144 6,02,13,546

NOTE NO. 17 : CHANGE IN INVENTORIES -WORK IN PROGRESS

Opening Inventories - Work in Progress (AT COST)

2,46,53,41,008

4,11,66,60,919

Closing Inventories - Work in Progress (AT COST) (Refer Note No. 9.1)

85,36,96,229

2,46,53,41,007

Total

1,61,16,44,779

1,65,13,19,912

NOTE NO. 18 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 12,46,86,693 13,16,88,217
Contribution to Pro. Fund and Other Funds [Refer Note No. 6.1 & 18.1] 1,46,52,010 5,02,68,067
Staff Welfare Expenses 21,93,588 12,84,308
Honorarium to Chairman 3,00,000 78,870
Director Sitting Fees and Allowances 1,43,776 45,200
Total 14,19,76,067 18,33,64,662

Note No. 18.1: Provident Fund: As per the Scheme of the EPF & MP, Act 1952, required amount of PF contribution (Employer and Employees

Share) is regularly deposited with the Regional Provident Commissioner, Ahmedabad. In respect of employees on deputation from

Government / Other Government Boards, the amount of GPF / CPF deducted from their Salary is deposited with the concerned authorities.

Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars For the Year 2018-19

For the Year 2017-18

NOTE NO. 19 : OTHER EXPENSES

Payment to Auditors

As Auditor (Including Fees for IFC Report for PY Rs. 50,000/-) 2,35,000 2,25,000
For Taxation Matters — 12,000
For Tax Audit 30,000 20,000
For Reimbursement of Expenses 28,262 15,663
Electricity Expenses 24,76,107 19,00,290
Rent / Rates/ Taxes 27,27,435 63,07,841
Repairs to Buildings 33,779 29,036
Repairs to Others 3,54,514 3,39,617
Repairs to Machinery 58,457 51,115
Insurance 5,94,937 9,30,353
Vehicle Exp. & Car Hire Charges 98,20,096 86,73,045
Advertising Expenses [Refer Note No. 19.1] 51,16,188 11,58,426
Travelling Expenses 21,06,242 21,52,917
Printing and Stationary Expenses [Refer Note No. 19.1] 47,08,073 28,49,185
Communication Expenses 14,74,413 15,41,004
Security Expenses 14,85,727 16,30,126
Office Expenses 29,20,402 25,44,667
Interest on Income Tax and TDS 649 1,11,684
Interest / Penalty on Service Tax (RCM) — 5,056
Interest / Penalty - Others — 75,334
Service Tax / GST Expenses 2,16,851 3,71,192
Professional Tax - Company 2,000 2,000
Professional & Consultancy Charges 8,88,198 17,64,371
Miscellaneous Expenses 21,70,254 9,12,617
Examination Conducting Expenses 2,64,944 —
Web Development / Documentary Charges 4,00,000 7,33,332
Prior Period Expenses 6,314 4,283
Total 3,81,18,841 3,43,60,154

Note No. 19.1 : Advertisement expenses relates to Recruitments and Tenders. Printing and Stationary
expenses related to printing of Tender documents also.

Expenses includes

NOTE NO. 20 : WORKS COMPLETED

Aerial Mast Works 4,47,66,152 1,82,17,334
Residential Buildings 1,16,90,61,805 2,42,74,55,860
ACB Offices & Police Stations 16,01,18,015 —
Non-Residential Buildings 17,08,64,503 48,03,45,370
Repairing & Maintenance Works 15,16,17,365 15,64,81,768
BADP Works — —
Jail Works 28,58,44,684 16,44,66,885
MPF Construction Works 39,32,98,342 11,77,69,028
Home Guard Works 1,16,70,887 21,55,33,591
TASP Works 71,47,78,547 3,47,41,255
Command Control Center Works 21,63,63,245 —
SPD Systems in Police Station 1,07,03,820 —
Deposit Works (DGP/MP/MLA) 5,16,81,461 3,31,26,003
Deposit Works 6,69,60,322 6,41,78,114
FSL Works 46,76,983 —
Karai Works 3,56,12,610 63,780
13th Finance Works — 8,06,63,454
Total 3,48,80,18,740 3,79,30,42,442
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[21]

[22]
(23]

[24]

[25]

[26]

[27]

(28]

[29]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The corporation is set up as a “Nodal Agency” by Government of Gujarat to undertake various projects relating to
construction / maintenance and repairs of residential and non-residential buildings as per the directive and
requirement of the State / Central Government and is working on “No Profit No Loss” basis.

The expenditure incurred for such project is shown as “cost of building works” in the Statement of Income &
Expenditure Account.

The cost of ‘Completed Projects’ handed over to the respective agencies are adjusted against respective
grant / advances in the financial statement.

The figures are shown in Rupees whereas the figures shown in bracket are of previous year.

The previous year’s figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified wherever necessary so as to compare
to the current year’s presentation.

As the company acts as a nodal agency for the execution of the construction / repair and maintenance work of
residential and non residential projects awarded by the State Government / Central Government / Government
Departments on ‘No Profit No Loss’ basis, In view of this, there does not result any Earning per share requiring any
disclosure in the financial statements.

The Corporation during the year had deducted /recovered from running / final bills, of contracting agencies amount
towards security deposit Rs. 10,00,58,595/- (P.Y. Rs. 5,42,27,006/-), Time limit deposit Rs. 1,99,62,080/-
(P.Y. Rs. 6,85,90,012/-), Other deposit Rs. 3,27,04,677/- (P.Y. Rs. 2,92,23,386/-) as per tender terms and
conditions. The Corporation has maintained ledger for these heads amounting to Rs. 32,77,11,620/-,
Rs. 2,28,69,476/- and Rs. 9,42,30,807/- respectively.

In the Opinion of the Board, assets other than fixed assets and non current investments have a value on
realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

The corporation is working as a Nodal agency on behalf of the Government and working on ‘No Profit - No Loss’
basis, hence there is no profit or loss at the year end. In view of this no Income tax or deferred tax provision has
been made in the financial statements.

Contingent Liability / Commitments (To the e  xtent not provided for) :

No. Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018

1 | Arbitration references filed against the Corporation at Gujarat Public 10,56,95,663 10,21,91,652
Works Contract Disputes Arbitration by various contracting agencies,
admitted, but awaiting listing for hearing in progress.

2 | DCIT Gandhinagar Circle, Gandhinagar has raised demand for 9,19,360/- —
A.Y. 2015-16 on 30-04-2019, against which Corporation has filed an
Appeal before CIT (Appeals), Gandhinagar, Matter is yet to come up.

Particulars of Remuneration to the Directors :

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
A | To the Chairman
Honorarium 3,00,000 78,870
B | To the Managing Director
Pay & Allowances 20,93,104 22,09,695
Leave Salary & Pension Contribution 5,87,115 5,81,096
Medical Reimbursement 2,000 0
Total 26,82,219 27,90,791
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[30] In the opinion of the management, there are no indications, internal or external, which could have the effect of
impairing the value of the assets to any material extent as at the Balance Sheet date requiring recognition in terms
of Accounting Standard (AS-28)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
1 | Value of imports calculated on CIF basis NIL NIL
2 | Expenditure in foreign currency NIL NIL
3 | Earnings in foreign exchange NIL NIL
4 | Amount remitted in foreign currency during the year on a/c. of dividend NIL NIL

[31] Operating lease rental is e xpended with reference to lease terms and conditions :

The Corporation has taken on lease the premises, for its office use from Gujarat State Civil Supplies
Corporation Ltd. The lease rental is to be paid based on the valuation done by Roads & Building Department
[R&B], Government of Gujarat on year to year basis.

(1) The valuation for the lease rental for the year 2016-17 to 2018-19 is yet to be completed by the R&B
department Government of Gujarat.

In view of above, lease rental paid for the years 2016-17 to 2018-19 (upto 14-08-2018 being the date

for vacating the lease premises) is on the basis of last valuation done by the R&B department for the

year 2015-16. Difference lease rental, if any likely to arise on completion of respective years valuation
by the R&B deptt. will be paid and debited in the year in which the same is determined and intimated
to the corporation. No provision for the same is therefore made in the current year’'s accounts as amount
is not ascertainable.

(2) For the financial year 2018-19, total lease rent paid/provided is for Rs. 24,59,500/- (excluding GST) for

Head Office Gandhinagar and for Surat division office. (P.Y. Rs. 61,92,000/-)

As per our report FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

For, R. S. Patel & Co. HASMUKH PATEL D.D.PATEL

Chartered Accountants Managing Director Chairman

Firm Reg. No. : 107758W
BRAJESH JHA S.B.VASAVA

Rajan B. Shah Director Director

Partner

Membership No. : 101998 JAINIKVAKIL DHARMENDRA MIRANI

UDIN : 19101998AAAAFU2085 Director Director
ARPITARAJPUROHIT SUNIL SHAH
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place : Ahmedabad Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 04-09-2019 Date : 04-09-2019
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FORM NO. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Name of the Company . GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.
Registered Office . Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B, Gandhinagar-382 010.
CIN No. : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address

E-mail 1D
Folio No. / Client 1D
DP ID
I/We, being the member(s) of ............... shares of the above named company, hereby appoint.
(1) Name PSPPSR
Address PP
E-mail 1D L e
Signature PP or failing him
(2) Name PSPPSR
Address L e
E-mail 1D PP
Signature PSPPI TPPTRPPIN or failing him
(3) Name PR
Address PP
E-mail 1D L e
Signature PP

As myl/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual
General Meeting (ADJOURNED) of the Company, to be held on the Tuesday, 26th November, 2019 at 12.00

noon at registered office of the Corporation, situated at Behind Lokayukta Bha van, Off “CHH” Road, Sector

10/B, Gandhinagar-382 010. , Gujarat and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ............... day of ............... 2019
Signature of Shareholder ..........ccoooiiiiiiiii e,
Signature of Proxy holder(S) ......coovveiiiiiiiiieii e

Note : This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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GUJARAT STATE POLICE HOUSING CORPORATION LTD.
CIN : U45201GJ1988SGC011453

Route Map for the Venue of the
31st Annual General Meeting of
Gujarat State Police Housing Corporation Ltd.
to be held at the Registered Office of the Corporation
located at
Behind Lokayukta Bhavan, Off “CHH” Road, Sector 10/B,
Gandhinagar-382010.

Prominent Landmark - Behind Lokayukta Bha van
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